Standards of Conduct





Standards of Conduct

Table of Contents

Attendance & Tardiness	1
Attire and Personal Representation (Dress for Your Day)	2
Confidentiality	2
Human Rights	2
Anti-Harassment/Anti-Discrimination/Anti-Retaliation	3
Reporting Incidents and Potential Violations	3
Outside Employment	3
Safety and Emergency	4
Security, Access and Identification	4
Smoking	4
Solicitation	5
Violence in the Workplace Prevention	5
Weapons	
Related Materials	

Policy

The Standards of Conduct policy and the Stewart Code of Business Conduct and Ethics are designed to prevent and detect violations of laws, regulations and ethical conduct applicable to Stewart's business operations. Refer to Stewart Business Code of Conduct and Ethics for related information.

An employee who has been found by the Company to have violated or engaged in conduct inconsistent with any policy enumerated in the Standards of Conduct policy is subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

Attendance & Tardiness

Each employee is required to be present and ready to work on time from the start to the end of each working day, according to his/her work schedule assigned by management. If unable to report to work for any reason, an employee is to inform the manager or designee no later than 30 minutes from the commencement of the scheduled start time, unless otherwise directed by management.

Any employee in violation of the Attendance & Tardiness policy may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination. Refer to *Disciplinary Action* (under *Employment*), *Hours of Work*, and *Time Off* policies for related information, unless such absences are otherwise protected by applicable law.

If an employee fails to report to work without proper notice for three (3) consecutive scheduled workdays, the Company will presume the employee has voluntarily resigned and the employee will be terminated from employment, unless applicable law defines a longer period prior to termination and/or unless such absences are otherwise protected by applicable law.

Return to Top

Attire and Personal Representation (Dress for Your Day)

Employees may use discretion to select appropriate dress attire for each working day and when representing the Company. The dress and appearance of all employees should be professional and appropriate for the work environment. Employees should consider the day's activities and, if meeting with customers, vendors or other non-Company personnel, employees should wear attire appropriate for the situation. Employees are expected to use good judgement in their appearance and grooming, maintain proper hygiene, and should be dressed appropriately for their day. If an employee's personal representation poses an issue, management or Stewart Human Resources may address the concern(s) with the employee. If an employee is asked to leave work to address a personal representation issue, time lost is not considered work time.

Stewart will reasonably accommodate exceptions to this policy if required due to an employee's bona fide religious beliefs, medical condition, or disability. Employees who need such an accommodation should contact their manager or Stewart Human Resources.

Refer to *Employment* policy for related information.

Return to Top

Confidentiality

Each employee is responsible for using his/her best judgment to safeguard and manage confidential information at all times.

This policy is intended to alert employees to the need for discretion at all times and is not intended to inhibit normal business communications, nor is it intended to prevent employees from discussing the terms and conditions of their own employment.

Refer to *Employment, Stewart Code of Business Conduct and Ethics,* and *Information Technology Security and Computer Usage* policies for related information.

Return to Top

Human Rights

Stewart recognizes the important responsibility we have towards the respect and equality of every human being and is focused on preserving human rights throughout our operations, customer base, and supply chain. We value and promote an inclusive, diverse, safe, and ethical workplace and in our supplier and vendor relationships, including the protection of minority groups and women's rights, free of any form of harassment or violence, as demonstrated in our Stewart Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, the Standards of Conduct, and our Supplier/Vendor Code of Conduct.

Stewart strives to avoid causing or contributing to any adverse human rights impacts through our own activities and business relationships. We encourage our employees, suppliers, and stakeholders to speak up, without retribution, about any human rights concerns by reporting their concern to management, Stewart Human Resources, or the EthicsPoint hotline at (866) 384-4277. We are committed to complying with local laws and regulations protecting human rights. Where local laws and regulations are not fully consistent with the principles of internationally recognized human rights, we will seek ways to advance those principles in a manner respectful of local requirements.

Return to Top

Anti-Harassment/Anti-Discrimination/Anti-Retaliation

Stewart is committed to providing a professional work environment that is free of unlawful harassment and discrimination. Company policy prohibits sexual harassment (by members of the same sex and opposite sex), and harassment or discrimination based on race, color, religion, creed, gender, pregnancy or related medical conditions, age (40 and over), national origin or ancestry, physical or mental dis ability, genetic information or any other consideration protected by applicable law. The Company's policy applies to all persons involved in the operation of the Company and prohibits harassment by any employee of the Company, including managers and co-workers, as well as by any person doing business with or for the Company. Conduct of Company employees while performing their duties outside the workplace shall also be governed by this policy.

Reporting Incidents and Potential Violations

Employees who believe that they have been harassed or discriminated against by a co-worker, manager, agent, client, vendor or customer of the Company, or who are aware of misconduct, harassment of and/or discrimination against others, must report their concern to management, Stewart Human Resources or EthicsPoint at (866) 384-4277 or <u>www.ethicspoint.com</u> as soon as possible after the incident. Reports may be anonymous, if preferred. If the reporting person is not identified, the Company might not be able to respond appropriately to the reported concern. The Company will immediately undertake an investigation of the harassment or discrimination allegations and will endeavor to protect the privacy and confidentiality of all parties involved to the extent possible, consistent with a thorough investigation.

If the Company determines that prohibited harassment or discrimination has occurred in violation of this policy, effective appropriate action will be taken in accordance with the circumstances involved. Any employee determined by the Company to have violated this policy will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including termination. All employees must immediately report any incidents of harassment or discrimination in violation of by this policy so that such concerns can be quickly and fairly resolved. Any report of harassment or discrimination must be made in good faith.

Protection Against Retaliation

The Company will not retaliate against employees for filing a complaint and will not tolerate retaliation by management, employees or co-workers. Retaliation is prohibited against any person, by another employee or by the Company, for using this complaint procedure, reporting harassment, or for filing, testifying, assisting, or participating in any manner in any investigation, proceeding or hearing conducted by a governmental enforcement agency. Prohibited retaliation could include, but is not limited to, termination, demotion, suspension, failure to hire or consider for hire, failure to give equal consideration in making employment decisions, failure to make employment recommendations impartially, adversely affecting working conditions, or otherwise denying any employment benefit because of an employee's protected activity.

Any report of retaliatory conduct will be investigated thoroughly and objectively. If the Company determines a violation of this policy has occurred, appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including termination, will be taken.

Return to Top

Outside Employment

The Company respects each employee's right to engage in activities outside of employment such as those that are of a personal or private nature, to the extent that such activities do not interfere with job performance or efficiency,

involve the use of Company resources or time, pose a conflict of interest, or in any way harm the business or reputation of the Company. For the purposes of this policy, self-employment is considered outside employment.

Engaging in outside employment prohibited by this policy may lead to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

The Company will not assume any responsibility for employees' outside employment. Specifically, Stewart will not provide workers' compensation coverage or any other benefit for injuries occurring from, or arising out of, such outside employment.

Return to Top

Safety and Emergency

Stewart makes every effort to provide safe working conditions for our employees. Safety is the responsibility of every employee. Employees are required to abide by all Company safety rules, policies and procedures, including, but not limited to, those set forth in this policy. If unsafe work practices are reported, employees may be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including termination. Furthermore, refusal to comply with this policy or to put one's self or any other person in imminent danger by unwillingness or neglect may result in immediate termination of employment.

Reporting Accidents or Injuries

Employees are required to report any and all on-the-job accident or injury that results in bodily harm and/or property damage to any manager immediately or as soon as reasonably possible. This applies not just to employees who are directly involved in an on-the-job accident or injury, but also to any employee who has knowledge of an on-the-job accident or injury. Any employee who does not report within 24 hours a known on-the-job accident or injury resulting in bodily harm and/or property damage may be disciplined, up to and including termination. The purpose of this policy is to help maintain a safe work environment. Stewart will not tolerate retaliation against any employee who reports an on-the-job accident or injury to management.

Refer to Worker's Compensation Insurance and Disability Accommodations (under Employment) policy for related information.

Return to Top

Security, Access and Identification

Access needs for each employee are determined by management. If provided, employees may be required to wear security badges while on work premises for identification and/or access purposes. Where it is required to wear security badges while on work premises for identification and/or access purposes, employees will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination, if he/she does not comply with the requirements. Employees must follow any precautions provided to ensure security badges and Company keys are protected and secure at all times. Where available, access may be monitored by card readers, video cameras or other monitoring devices.

Return to Top

Smoking

The use of all tobacco products, electronic cigarettes and other vapor emitting devices are not allowed in any Stewart building. Employees may only use these products in designated areas and must adhere to applicable law

regarding smoking.

Refer to *Hours of Work* policy for related information on smoking breaks.

Solicitation

The Company has established rules applicable to all employees and non-employees that govern solicitation, distribution of written material, and access to Company property. Compliance with these rules is required.

- No employee may engage in solicitation during his/her working time or during the working time of the employee or the employees at whom such activity is directed
- No employee may distribute or circulate any written or printed material in work areas at any time, or during his/her working time or during the working time of the employee or employees at whom such activity is directed
- Non-employees are not permitted to solicit or to distribute written material for any purpose on Company property
- Off-duty employees are not permitted in work areas

As used in this policy, "working time" includes all time for which an employee is paid and/or is scheduled to be performing services for the Company; it does not include break periods, meal periods, or periods in which an employee is not performing and is not scheduled to be performing services or work for the Company.

Return to Top

Violence in the Workplace Prevention

It is Stewart's goal to have a workplace free from acts or threats of violence and to effectively respond in the event that such acts or threats of violence do occur. Workplace violence is any intentional conduct that is sufficiently severe, offensive or intimidating to cause an individual to reasonably fear for his/her personal safety or the safety of his/her family, friends and/or property such that employment conditions are altered, or a hostile, abusive or intimidating work environment is created for one or several employees.

Workplace violence does not refer to occasional comments of a socially acceptable nature. Such comments may include references to legitimate sporting activities, popular entertainment or current events. Rather, it refers to behavior that is personally offensive, threatening or intimidating. The prohibition against threats and acts as described above applies to all persons involved in the operation of the Company, including, but not limited to, Stewart contract and temporary employees and non-employees on Stewart property.

No provision of this policy statement or any other provision in this policy shall alter the at-will nature of employment with the Company. Stewart will make the sole determination of whether and to what extent, threats or acts of violence will be acted upon by the Company. In making this determination we may undertake a case-by-case analysis in order to determine whether there is a reasonable basis to believe that workplace violence has occurred.

Any employee or other individual, who is aware of any potentially dangerous situation, whether he/she has been subjected to, witnessed or made aware of, should immediately report the incident to management, Stewart Human Resources or EthicsPoint at (866) 384-4277 or <u>www.ethicspoint.com</u>.

Weapons

In the interest of maintaining a workplace that is safe and free of violence, Stewart prohibits the presence or use of handguns, firearms and other dangerous weapons on Company property, regardless of whether or not the person is licensed to carry the weapon. For purposes of this policy, "Company property" is defined as all Company-owned or leased buildings and surrounding areas such as sidewalks, walkways and driveways under the Company's ownership or control, except as noted below. In addition, this policy applies to all Company-owned or leased vehicles. "Dangerous weapons" include, but are not limited to, firearms, knives, explosives, and other similar weapons.

Any employee who violates this policy is subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination. A visitor who violates this policy may be removed from the property and reported to authorities. This policy does not apply to law enforcement personnel or security personnel who are engaging in official duties.

The Company reserves the right at any time and at its discretion to search all Company-owned or leased vehicles and all vehicles, packages, containers, briefcases, purses, lockers, desks, enclosures, and persons entering its property for the purpose of determining whether any weapon has been brought onto its property or premises in violation of this policy. Employees who fail or refuse to promptly permit a search under this policy will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

Notwithstanding any of the foregoing restrictions, the Company does not prohibit employees who lawfully possess firearms or ammunition from storing their firearms or ammunition inside their locked, privately owned vehicles in parking lots or other parking areas provided by the Company. Such lawfully possessed firearms and ammunition may not be removed from the employee's personal vehicle or displayed to others. To the extent that parking lots or other parking areas utilized by employees are not owned by the Company, the owners of such parking lots may have additional rules that impact the storage of firearms and ammunition. In such situations, employees must comply with the rules of both the Company and the property owner, in keeping with applicable law.

Return to Top

Related Materials

Stewart Employee Policies

Reference Guide to Stewart Employee Policies